
/,.,,,=-...., 

ENSOR EOUSE 

The Italianate style was very popular in Towson during the 
Victorian era and the Ensor Fouse stands as testimony to that 
fact. Although the house has been much altered for commercial 
use, the exterior, including the bracketed eaves, has survived. 
This house once shared the northeast corner of Pennsylvania and 
Washington Avenues with a larger Italianate house that has been 
demolished. 
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

This 2 story frame house features a hipped tin-ribbed roof and is 
characterized by its decorative bracketed eaves. Resting on a stone found­
ation, the main block is L-shaped, the street wing being higher by approx­
imately 1/3 story than the back wing, which is also a full stories. It 
is 5 bays wide and 5 bays deep with an exterior end and interior central -
chimney. The exterior is covered with clapboards,• There have been extensive 
interior and exterior alterations. The style is Italianate. 

The south street facade is very handsome with its regular fenestration 
of tall 6/6 light sash windows on the second story and the bracketed eaves. 
Based on examination of another similar Italianate house on this street, 
the single-storied porch, although now enclosed, was probably at @ne time 
open. The door, located at the central bay, has 4-pane side-]ights which 
a].so appear to be altered. The frieze is plain but adding to the elabor­
ateness of this facade is the cyma reversa cornice moulding. 

The west facade is characterized by the single-storied addition which 
covers the southern half, extending beyond where the wings meet, and 
enclosing the exterior end chimney. Rock-faced formstone foundation 
supports the addition on this facade, indicationg this addition is at least 
30 years old. Only the southern wing has bracketed eaves;;the north wing 
is plain. The second story has regular fenestration consisi ting o.f 2 6/6 
light sash windows on the southern portion, 2 in the central area and 1 
northern 6 light casement window. The first level has somewhat irregular 
fenestration due to the addition on this story. Lighting the addition 
itself are 2 6/6 light sash windows and 2 closely placed 6/6 light sash 
windows. The northern wing has one single and 2 closely placed 6/6 light 
sash windows. 

The northern facade shows another addition, here 2 stories with an 
exterior stairway leading to the second story. The door on this level is 
located at the easternmost bay. This story also features 3 adjacent 6 
light casement windows and a sloping roof. The north facade of the sout' · :'n 
wing has bracketed eaves. The first level has 2 6/6 light sash windows, 
one of which is hidden by the stairway, and a door at the westernmost bay. 

A completely enclosed addition covers the southernmost wing of the east 
CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY 



facade. Like the west facade, there is regular fenestration of 
2 6/6 light sash windows on the second level, 1 on the north 

wing, and 1 6-light casement window there® Also on the north 

wing on the first story are 2 4-light casement windows* 

The first of 2 outbuildings is a frame structure which has a 
gabled-end roof~ Probably used as a grage, it is 10'3" wide and 
18' deep with a 4' extension on the north side. The original 

block has 10' between eaves and ground, eaves being about 1' 
deep and the rafter ends are exposed 2X4's. The door at the south­

west corner relates to the house and has 4 lights and 2 panelss 
The gable on the south side is vented by a square window~ The 

building rests on brick piers and is decorated with lattice 
work. The interior walls are finished ~ith horizontally laid 

toung and groove 5~" wide paneling. The exterior walls are finished 

with clapboards. It probably had a wide entrance double door on 
the north side. This building was probably built beforecars 

became popular and as cars got bigger, the addition was built to 
enclose them. The second outbuilding, the east half of which is 

a 2-car garage, is constructed of reek-faced formstone, and is 
20' wide, 19!' deep. The gabled-end roof has exposed rafter ends 
suggesting brackets. 

Over the years, the interior has been extensively altered, 
especially on the first level which now serves as a shop. The 
cellar shows very little original fabric. The second floor is in 
its relativ@ly unaltered state, but it too has been changed as 

it appeared to have been converted into an apartment® 
A central stairway leads down to the full low ceilinged stone 

cellar$ Vertically sawn floor joists, buttressed stone supports 

and common wire nails were among the few pieces of original 
fabric found in this area~ 

On the first level the main block is divided into the 2 wings 
which constitute the L plane The southern rooms were most likely 

the parlors~a~d~the northern rooms, the kitchen area8 Supporting 
this idea are the more detailed moulding and trim found in the 

south wing as compared with the very plain moulding and trim in 
the north wing~ But not much more about the use of each room can 
be said, since there have been so many alterations. Even both 
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fireplaces have been covered~ 

The house is entered by means of a centxal hall which contains 

the staircase and has flanking parlors. The hall provides 
access to oniy these southernmos±trooms. The northern wing is 
entered through a door at the westernmost bay. 

Probably the most classical and decorative detail is seen in 

the delicate treatment of the stairway. It ia a switcc-hback open 

well staircase with scrolled stepends, a pair of flairing newels, 
and thin turned balusters. The other notable features in the 

first floor area are the brass and glass doorknobs, kittycorned 
built-in cabinets in the SW room, wall paneling in the SE room, 

some panes of waivy glassf and a 15 panel door opening into a 
closet behind the stairs~ 

The second floor plan probably originally reflected that of 
the one below, providing for at least 3 bedrooms with 2 other 
rooms at the 1~~ wing which was later converted into a kitchen 

and probably had a veranda-like porch. The central decoratively 
moulded stairway solves the problem of connecting the lower 

northern wing with the higher southern wing as it provides 1 
landing at the north wing and another leading up to the-south 
wing~ The southernmost rooms are provided with a lot of light 

due tD the high (9') ceilings and the many tall windows, and 
have fancy architrave trim$ The northern wing has a trapezoidal 

ceiling and plain baseboards. Interesting details encountered 
on this level include a closet in the alcove of the SE room 
with toung and groove paneling, early electr:icc gas fixtures in 
the SW room and recessed handles on the bottom of the window 

woods 
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Like many of the houses in Towson, this one is significant to the city 
in both its individual style and as part of the group of houses which 
were built as part of the courthouse square, this particular one being 
built sometime between 1868 and 1877 when it appeared on the Hopkins map. 
The price of the property when it was sold in 1868 indicates there was 
p;:_obably not a dwelling thereon. 

As an individual structure this house reflects the strong influence of 
the Italianate style as evidenced by the tall, handsome street facade 
decorated by bracketed eaves. This Italianate style can be seen in over 
a dozen houses in the Towson area alone and in a few houses within a block 
of the courthouse square. This house, in am effort to be part of the court­
house scene of the day, responded by showing its real design and fashion 
on the street ~acade. ~he southern rooms are themselves fancier and lighter 
than the practical living area which is part of the northern wing hidden 
from view from the street. 

A very important point to note in the determination of the fut~re-of a 
building such as this is that this house is perhaps on of the last residence 
-like structure on the block. It is a very strong example of the way in 
which a charming building can be recycled to accomodate the ever-expanding 
community as in this case, the once residence was converted into a 
modern business. 

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY 



Ensor House - Signif cance 

Like many of the house in Towson, this one is significant to the 
city both its individual style and as part of the group of houses 

which were built as part of the courthouse square, this particular 
one being built sometime between 1868 and 1877 when it appeared on 
the Hopkins map$ The price of the property when it was sold in 1868 
indicates there was probably not a dwelling thereon~ 

As an individual structur.e this house reflects the strong influ­

ence of the Italianate style as evidenced by the tall, handsome 

street facade decorated by bracketed eaves. This Italianate style 

can be seen in over a dozen houses in the Towson area alone and in 
a few houses within a block of the courthouse squaree This house, 

in an effort to be part of the courthouse scene of the day, respond­
ed by showing its real design and fashion on the street facades The 

southern rooms are themselves fancier and lighter than the practical 
living area which is part of the northern wing hidden from view 

from the street. 

A very important point to note in the determination of the 
future of a building such as this is that this house is perhaps 
of the last residence-like structure on the block& It is a very 
strong example of the way in which a charming building can be 

recycled to accomidate the ever-expanding community as in this 
case, the once residence was converted into a modern business4 
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION 

See tile abstrast 

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERL~PPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES 

STATE 

STATE 
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Willis E. Anne Burton 

COUNTY 

COUNTY 

Wayne Nield 

WAYNE I. N!ELD, ll 
HlSTORIC TOWSON, INC. 

DATE ORGANIZATION 

Goucher College Historic Towson, Inc. · Jan. 18, 197s 
STREET & NUMBER TELEPHONE 

Dulaney VaJJey Rd. 
CITY OR TOWN 

296-5493 
STATE 

Towson, 

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created 
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the 
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 
1974 Supplement. 

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information 
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe­
ment of individual property rights. 

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust 
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle 
Annapolis, Maryland 21401 
( 301) 267-1438 
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Deeds 

Deeds 

Deeds 
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3578/163 

1748/549 

1271/350 

498/343 

333/515 

59/ 441 

Towson Building Co.--to--The Clothes 
Line Inc. s•• 2 lots ••• beginning for 
first 75 ft. easterly from the inter­
section of Penn. and Wash. Aves. 

8/14/1959 

William L. Gaebl & wife --to--Towson 

Building Co •••• same lots. 6/7/1949 

Grace B. Haile--to-- William L. Gaebl 
••• same lots •• s 3/1/1943 

Cora M. Hipsley--to--Charles T. Haile 
••• same lots.8. 5/16/1918 

John T. Ensor & wife--to--Cora M. Hipsley 

••• same lots~·· 11/2/1908 

Joseph J. Lewes & Enos Smedley--to--(9/13/1868) 
John T. Ensor ••• lot included in larger 
piece of property conveyed from Washington 

Townsend to Lewes and Smedley and also being 
part of that property deeded from Grafton 

Bosley to Enos Smedley dated 7/24/1854 and 
recorded among land record liber 9 folio 123 
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Towson Building Co.--to--The Clothes 
Line Inc •••• 2 lots ••• beginning for 
first 75 ft. easterly from ne inter­
section of Penn. and Wash. Aves. 

8/14/19.59 

William L. Gaebl & wife--to--Towson 
Building Co. s•• same lots. 6/7/1949 

Grace B. Haile--to--William L. Gaebl 
• • • same lots. • • J/1/194 J 

Cora M. Hipsley--to--Charles T. Haile 
••• same lots... 5/16/1918 

John T. Ensor & wife--to--Cora M. Hipsley 
••• same lots... 11/2/1908 

Joseph J. Lewes & Enos Smedley--to-- ~ef 
John T. Ensor ••• lot included in 9/1J/1 
larger piece of property conveyed from 
l:llashin~ton Townsend to Lewes and 
Smedley and also being part of that 
property deeded from Grafton Bosley to 
Enos Smedley dated 7/24/1854 and recorded 
among land record liber9 folio12J 
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